
 

763.479.0527                                                  1920 County Road 90                                          Fax: 763.479.0528 
                                                                       Independence, MN 55359 
                                                                    www.ci.independence.mn.us 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA          
TUESDAY APRIL 7, 2020 
 
****PLEASE NOTE**** 
6:00 PM - LOCAL BOARD OF APPEALS AND EQUALIZATION MEETING 
 
1. Call to Order 
 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
3. Roll Call 

 
4. ****Consent Agenda**** 
All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted 
on by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, 
that item will be removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 
 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 17, 2020 Regular City Council 
Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19550-19566. 
c. Approval of Twin Cities Polo Club Large Assembly and Gambling Permits for 

Annual Charity Event to be Held on August 2, 2020. 
 

5. Set Agenda – Anyone Not on the Agenda can be Placed Under Open/Misc.  
 

6. Reports of Boards and Committees by Council and Staff. 
 

7. PUBLIC HEARING: Consideration of an Amendment to City Code Section 915 - 
Regulation	of	Lake	Independence	Surface	Use: 

 
a. ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01: A	proposed	amendment	to	City	Code	Section	915	–	

Regulation	of	Lake	Independence	Surface	Use.		The	amendment	would	increase	
the	trigger	elevation	(from	957.8	to	958.2)	at	which	point	the	slow	no-wake	
regulations	would	become	effective.			

	
8. COVID -19 Update. 

 
9. Open/Misc. 

 
10. Adjourn. 
 



 

1 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 17, 2020 

 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE 

INDEPENDENCE CITY COUNCIL  

TUESDAY, MARCH 17, 2020 –6:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER. 

 

Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the Independence City Council was called to 

order by Mayor Johnson at 6:30 p.m. 

 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. ROLL CALL  

 

PRESENT: Mayor Johnson, Councilors Betts (via remote location), Grotting, McCoy and Spencer 

ABSENT: City Attorney Vose 

STAFF: City Administrator Kaltsas, Assistant to Administrator Horner 

VISITORS: WHPS Director Kroells 

 

4. ****Consent Agenda**** 

All items listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by Council and will be acted on by one 

motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items. If discussion is desired, that item will be 

removed from the Consent Agenda and will be considered separately. 

 

a. Approval of City Council Minutes from the March 2, 2020 Regular City Council Meeting. 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable; Checks Numbered 19504-19549.  

c. Agriculture Preserve Enrollment Application: RESOLUTION No. 20-0317-01 Approving a 

Request to Enroll the Property Located at 2750 County Line Road in the Metropolitan Agriculture 

Preserve Program.   

d. Large Assembly Permit Approval: To Permit a Farm Auction on the Property Located at 7949 

County Road 11 on May 30, 2020. 

e. Request for a One Year Subdivision Approval Extension for the Property Located at 2365 County 

Road 92 N.   

 

Motion by Grotting, second by McCoy to approve the Consent Agenda. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, McCoy, 

Spencer and Grotting.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

5. SET AGENDA – ANYONE NOT ON THE AGENDA CAN BE PLACED UNDER OPEN/MISC. 

 

6. REPORTS OF BOARDS AND COMMITTEES BY COUNCIL AND STAFF 

 

Spencer attended the following meetings: 

• None 

 

Grotting attended the following meetings: 

• Highway 12 Safety Corridor Coalition Meeting 

 

McCoy attended the following meetings:  

• None 



 

2 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 17, 2020 

 

Betts attended the following meetings: 

• West Hennepin Chamber of Commerce Meeting 

• Highway 12 Safety Corridor Coalition Meeting 

 

Johnson attended the following meetings: 

• Highway 12 Safety Corridor Coalition Meeting 

• League of Minnesota Cities Webinar 

• Northwest League Municipalities Meeting 

• Orono Healthy Youth Meeting 

 

Horner attended the following meetings: 

• Presidential Primary Election 

 

Kaltsas attended the following meetings: 

 

7. West Hennepin Public Safety Director, Gary Kroells, February 2020 Monthly Report. 

 

Kroells stated there have been a total of 892 incident complaints as of February 29, 2020. In the month of 

February there were 292 were in the City of Independence and 167 in the City of Maple Plain. 

 

*for a full report see the packet* 

 

Johnson asked about the arrest on the 29th and Kroells said that it is part of the effort working the 

Highway 12 Corridor towards the zero-death initiative. Betts said she really appreciated the Code Red 

notifications. Kroells said they are working daily with Covid-19 alerts and information and taking all 

the necessary precautions to care of the officers and residents. He noted burn permits and gun licenses 

will all be done online. There is a table in the lobby for people to leave burn permit information or 

pick up a permit in order to avoid contact. 

 

8. PUBLIC HEARING: A Public Hearing to Consider the Following: 

 

a. RESOLUTION No. 20-0317-02 - 2020-2024 Capital Improvement Plan and Preliminary 

Approval to Issue Bonds to Finance the Costs of the Street Reconstruction. 

 

b. RESOLUTION No. 20-0317-03 - 2020-2024 Street Reconstruction Plan and Preliminary 

Approval to Issue Bonds to Finance the Costs of the Capital Improvement Plan. 

 

Kaltsas said the City has determined that certain streets in the City need reconstruction, repair and 

improvements. The City based its findings on the long-range street improvement plans which assess all 

streets in the City based on their age, condition, number of users and current condition. The City’s 

engineer has prepared detailed plans and specifications for the 2020 Street Overlay Project. The overlay 

project will provide for an approximately one and half inch bituminous overlay on top of the existing roads 

included in the project. The project will also include the installation of a gravel shoulder, specific crack 

repair and the installation of a bituminous apron at certain road intersections. Approximately 6 miles of 

existing bituminous roads will be included in the project and are identified below: 

 

• Stephanie Way 

• Brei Kessel Road 



 

3 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 17, 2020 

 

• Merz Way 

• Waldemar Way 

• Providence Place 

• Providence Court, Warren Way 

• Providence Curve 

• Providence Path 

• Turner Road 

• Polo Club Road 

• Copeland Road 

• Lindgren Lane 

• Independence Road 

• Budd Street 

• Fieldstone Place 

• Stone Court 

• Hillstrom Road 

• Drake Court 

• Drake Drive 

• Painter Creek Green 

• Timber Island Trail 

 

The City has prepared a 5-year street plan which corresponds with the bituminous overlay of the 

aforementioned streets. 

 

Public Hearing Open 

 

Johnson asked Betts if she had any comments on the Resolutions and she said she was in favor of them and 

anxious to get them approved as rates are good right now. 

 

Motion by Grotting, second by Spencer to close the Public Hearing. 

 

Public Hearing Closed 

 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to approve RESOLUTION No. 20-0317-02 - 2020-2024 Capital 

Improvement Plan and Preliminary Approval to Issue Bonds to Finance the Costs of the Street 

Reconstruction. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer, McCoy and Grotting.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. 

Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

Motion by Grotting, second by Betts to approve RESOLUTION No. 20-0317-03 - 2020-2024 Street 

Reconstruction Plan and Preliminary Approval to Issue Bonds to Finance the Costs of the Capital 

Improvement Plan. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer, McCoy and Grotting.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. 

Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

9. Appointment of Members to the Accessory Building Height Review Committee. 

 

a. RESOLUTION NO. 20-0317-04 - Committee Member Appointment Resolution. 

 



 

4 

City of Independence 

City Council Meeting Minutes 

6:30 p.m. March 17, 2020 

 

Motion by McCoy, second by Grotting to approve RESOLUTION NO. 20-0317-04 - Committee Member 

Appointment Resolution. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Spencer, McCoy and Grotting.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. 

Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 

 

10. Open/Misc. 

 

11. Adjourn. 
 

Motion by Spencer, second by McCoy to adjourn at 7:05 p.m. Ayes: Johnson, Betts, Grotting, Spencer 
and McCoy.  Nays: None.  Absent: None. Abstain. None.  MOTION DECLARED CARRIED. 
 

_____________________________ 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Trish Gronstal/ Recording Secretary 





















Page 1 

 

City of Independence  
Consideration of an Amendment to City Code  

Section 915 - Regulation of Lake Independence Surface Use 
 

 
To:  City Council 

 
From:  Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 

 
Meeting Date: April 7, 2020 

 

 
 

Discussion: 
The Lake Independence Citizens Association (LICA) has requested that the City consider 
amending the Lake Independence Surface Use Ordinance.  The amendment would increase the 
trigger elevation (from 957.8 to 958.2; 4.8 inches) at which point the slow no-wake regulations 
would become effective.  In 2019, surface use of Lake Independence was limited to no-wake for 
the entirety of the boating season as a result of water levels that exceeded the ordinance 
established elevations.  The City last reviewed the surface use ordinance for Lake Independence 
in 2014.  The previous ordinance had a 250-foot no-wake zone along the shoreline.   
 
Slow no wake levels are set by local governments and can be modified if it’s determined that a 
higher threshold level is needed to trigger slow no wake rules.  Both Medina and Independence 
would have to amend their ordinances for the change to be approved.  If approved by both 
municipalities, an application for an amendment would be made to the DNR for their review and 
approval. 
 
Historical information relating to the elevations is attached to this report for reference.  The 
information provided in the attached table highlights those readings above the proposed 958.2 
elevation.  The proposed increase to the trigger elevation would have historically decreased the 
number of days in which the slow-no wake restriction would be in place.  For reference and 
consideration by the City, Lake Independence water readings for 2019 are shown in the graph 
below (highlighted area in yellow represents range between existing trigger level and proposed 
trigger level). There are several additional considerations that should be noted: 
 

• The Ordinary High-Water Level (OHWL) for Lake Independence is 956.8. 
 

• The 100-year flood elevation of Lake Independence is 959.5. 
 

• The City has prepared an aerial graphic of the lake and surrounding properties which 
identifies those areas that fall between the OHWL level of 956.8 and the proposed trigger 
level of 958.2 (see attached graphic). 
 

• The City of Medina is holding a public hearing in April to consider the requested 
ordinance amendment. 



Page 2 

 

 
• Groundwater is high across much of MN and this is being shown by the water level of 

many lakes.  
 

• Minnesota is experiencing the wettest 5-year period in recorded history for the metro 
area. 

 
• Lake Independence does have an outlet which does regulate water levels.  The City has 

been working with our water resource consultants to evaluate the outlet and identify any 
issues and or solutions that could increase the outlets function.  The results of this 
evaluation will likely be available within the next two months. 
 

 
Source: LICA Website 

  
 
 The Cities of Medina and Independence have the ability to amend the slow no-wake trigger 
elevation of Lake Independence.  LICA is requesting an amendment to the ordinance which they 
believe represents a balance between reasonable recreational surface use of the lake and 
responsible management and mitigation of potential erosion, flooding and similar impacts to the 
lake shore.  The City will need to determine if the proposed increase in trigger elevation provides 
a reasonable balance.   
 
 
 



Page 3 

 

Council Recommendation: 
City Council is asked to consider approval of ORDINANCE No. 2020-01 amending City Code  
Section 915 - Regulation of Lake Independence Surface Use. 
 
 
Attachments: ORDINANCE No. 2020-01 
  Water Level Table 
  Comparison of Elevations Graphic 
  Letter from LICA 
  Draft Medina Ordinance Amendment 
  Information from Resident 



 
ORDINANCE NO. 2020-01 

CITY OF INDEPENDENCE 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER IX, SECTION 915, 
OF THE CITY CODE (REGULATION OF LAKE INDEPENDENCE SURFACE USE) 

 
 
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF INDEPENDENCE, HENNEPIN COUNTY, 
MINNESOTA, ORDAINS: 

 
SECTION 1.  The Independence City Code, Chapter IX, Section 915 is hereby amended by 
adding the following underlined language and deleting the strikethrough language: 
 
915.15. - Authority to regulate water surface use.  

Pursuant to Minn. Stats. §§ 459.20, 471.59 and 86B.205, Independence has entered into a 
joint powers agreement with the city of Medina for the purpose of regulating the surface use of 
the body of water known as Lake Independence. This section shall be effective after adoption 
and publication and after adoption of a similar ordinance by Medina. This section shall remain in 
effect until repealed or until the joint powers agreement is terminated.  
 
915.17. - Definitions.  
Subd. 1.  The terms used in this section related to boating, including "slow no-wake," shall 

have the meanings given to them in Minn. Stats. § 86B.005.  
 
Subd. 2.  "Lake Independence" means that body of water located in section 24, township 118, 

range 24, Hennepin County, Minnesota and designated by the Minnesota Department of 
Natural Resources as lake #27-176.  

 
915.19. - Slow no-wake zone on Lake Independence.  
Subd. 1.  Slow no-wake at high water level. Whenever the waters of Lake Independence reach 

or exceed 957.8 958.2 feet above sea level for a period of three consecutive days or more, as 
measured by the water level gauge set by the Minnesota department of natural resources on 
Lake Independence, the city administrator-clerk or designee, upon notifying the Hennepin 
county sheriff, shall establish a slow no-wake zone on those portions of the lake within 
Independence. No person shall operate a watercraft, including aircraft except during 
landings and take-offs, in excess of slow no-wake speed on the entire lake when the high 
water slow no-wake restrictions are in effect. Both the implementation and removal of these 
restrictions must be done in coordination with action by the city of Medina.  

 
Subd. 2.  Effective date of no-wake regulation. A slow no-wake restriction shall become 

effective upon the date specified by the city administrator-clerk and shall remain in effect 
until the water level for the lake has receded below 957.8 958.2 feet above sea level for at 
least three consecutive days.  

 



915.21. - Notification.  
The city administrator-clerk shall notify the public of both the implementation and removal 

of the no-wake restriction by publishing a notice in the city's official newspaper, posting the 
restriction at all public lake access points within the city prior to and during the time the 
restriction is in place, posting the restriction at city hall, and by such other means as the city 
administrator-clerk determines to be reasonable.  
 
915.23. - Exemption.  

Enforcement, resource management and emergency personnel, while in the performance of 
their official duties, are exempt from the provisions of this section.  
 
915.25. - Penalties.  

Any person convicted of violating this section shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and shall be 
subject to a maximum fine or a maximum period of imprisonment, or both, as specified by Minn. 
Stats. § 609.03.  
 
915.27. - Enforcement.  

The Hennepin County sheriff's department and special deputies appointed and sworn by the 
sheriff have primary responsibility for enforcing the provisions of this section, but nothing herein 
shall preclude other licensed peace officers from enforcing this section.  
 
 
SECTION 2.  This ordinance shall be in force and effect after enactment and publication as 
required by law.   
 
 
Adopted this 7th  day of April 2020, by the Independence City Council. 
 
 
 

______________________________________ 
Marvin Johnson, Mayor 

 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
_______________________________________ 
Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
 
 



CHR_ID ELEVATION READ_DATE DATUM_ADJ Days Above 958.2
27017600 951.1 6/13/35 NGVD 29
27017600 955.07 2/17/48 NGVD 29
27017600 955.53 6/14/49 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 4/17/50 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 5/2/50 NGVD 29
27017600 957.27 4/24/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.27 4/26/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.27 4/28/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.27 4/30/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.33 5/2/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.31 5/4/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.27 5/6/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.23 5/8/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.15 5/10/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.13 5/12/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 5/14/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.11 5/16/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.15 5/18/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.13 5/20/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 5/22/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.97 5/24/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.89 5/26/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 5/28/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.83 5/30/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.81 6/1/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.83 6/3/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.79 6/5/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 6/7/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 6/9/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.67 6/11/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.65 6/13/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.61 6/15/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.57 6/17/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.53 6/19/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.61 6/21/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.57 6/23/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.63 6/24/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.73 6/26/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.73 6/28/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 6/30/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.03 11/2/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.02 11/4/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.01 11/6/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.01 11/10/51 NGVD 29
27017600 957.01 11/12/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.98 11/14/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 11/16/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.94 11/18/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.9 11/20/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 11/23/51 NGVD 29



27017600 956.87 11/25/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.86 11/28/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.86 12/1/51 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 3/31/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 4/2/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 4/4/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 4/7/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 4/9/52 NGVD 29
27017600 958.4 4/11/52 NGVD 29
27017600 958.45 4/14/52 NGVD 29
27017600 958.4 4/16/52 NGVD 29
27017600 958.4 4/18/52 NGVD 29
27017600 958 4/20/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 4/22/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 4/25/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.25 4/28/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 4/29/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.25 5/1/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 5/2/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.1 5/5/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.1 5/8/52 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 5/13/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 5/16/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 5/19/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 5/23/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 5/26/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.7 5/30/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.65 6/2/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 6/6/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.45 6/9/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.45 6/13/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.45 6/16/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 6/19/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 8/1/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 8/5/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 8/8/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 8/11/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.58 8/16/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 8/19/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.51 8/22/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.41 8/26/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.43 8/30/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.38 9/2/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.3 9/6/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 9/9/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.19 9/13/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.13 9/16/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.07 9/20/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.04 9/23/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 9/27/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.8 10/4/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.75 10/7/52 NGVD 29



27017600 955.71 10/11/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.67 10/14/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.63 10/18/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.57 10/21/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.55 10/25/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.51 10/28/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.49 11/1/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.47 11/4/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.43 11/8/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.39 11/11/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.37 11/15/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.41 11/18/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.41 11/22/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.43 11/24/52 NGVD 29
27017600 955.45 11/29/52 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 4/3/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.41 4/7/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 4/10/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 4/14/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 4/17/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 4/21/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.23 4/24/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.21 4/28/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.29 4/30/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 5/2/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 5/4/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.34 5/8/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.41 5/12/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.39 5/15/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.35 5/19/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.42 5/22/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 5/26/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.19 5/29/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.19 6/2/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.19 6/5/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.41 6/9/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 6/12/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.49 6/16/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.63 6/19/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.77 6/23/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 6/26/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 6/30/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 7/4/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 7/7/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.63 7/11/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.81 7/14/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.79 7/17/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.83 7/21/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.77 7/24/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.81 7/28/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.79 7/31/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.89 8/4/53 NGVD 29



27017600 956.91 8/7/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.83 8/11/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.79 8/14/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 8/18/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.65 8/21/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 8/25/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.47 8/28/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.49 9/1/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.35 9/4/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 9/8/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 9/11/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.15 9/15/53 NGVD 29
27017600 956.15 9/18/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.95 9/22/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.95 9/25/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.83 9/29/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.79 10/2/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.79 10/6/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.76 10/9/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.75 10/13/53 NGVD 29
27017600 955.74 10/15/53 NGVD 29
27017600 954.45 10/20/53 NGVD 29
27017600 954.47 10/23/53 NGVD 29
27017600 953.45 10/27/53 NGVD 29
27017600 952.45 10/30/53 NGVD 29
27017600 954.83 4/2/54 NGVD 29
27017600 954.83 4/6/54 NGVD 29
27017600 954.87 4/10/54 NGVD 29
27017600 954.83 4/13/54 NGVD 29
27017600 954.83 4/16/54 NGVD 29
27017600 954.79 4/20/54 NGVD 29
27017600 954.79 4/23/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.11 4/27/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.37 4/30/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.95 5/4/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.95 5/7/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.85 5/11/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.73 5/14/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.48 5/18/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.45 5/21/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.36 5/25/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.26 5/28/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.32 6/1/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.26 6/4/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.16 6/8/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.1 6/11/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.06 6/15/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.22 6/18/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.68 6/22/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.74 6/26/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.68 6/29/54 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 7/2/54 NGVD 29



27017600 956.52 7/6/54 NGVD 29
27017600 956.42 7/9/54 NGVD 29
27017600 956.32 7/13/54 NGVD 29
27017600 956.32 7/16/54 NGVD 29
27017600 956.04 7/27/54 NGVD 29
27017600 956.04 7/30/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 8/3/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 8/6/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 8/10/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 8/13/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 8/17/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 8/20/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.76 8/24/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.78 8/27/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 8/31/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.68 9/3/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.66 9/7/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.66 9/10/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.68 9/14/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.66 9/17/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.62 9/21/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.62 9/24/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.52 9/28/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.52 10/1/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.58 10/5/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.54 10/8/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.62 10/12/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.58 10/15/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.54 10/19/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.54 10/22/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 10/26/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 10/29/54 NGVD 29
27017600 955.91 3/29/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 4/1/55 NGVD 29
27017600 956.12 4/13/55 NGVD 29
27017600 956.1 4/14/55 NGVD 29
27017600 956.08 4/16/55 NGVD 29
27017600 956 4/19/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.98 4/22/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 4/26/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.88 4/29/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.8 5/3/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.66 5/6/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.62 5/10/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.6 5/13/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 5/17/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.42 5/20/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.38 5/24/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.79 7/25/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.78 7/29/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.76 8/1/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.72 8/5/55 NGVD 29



27017600 955.66 8/8/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.62 8/13/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.58 8/15/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.52 8/26/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 9/27/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 10/1/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 10/4/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 10/7/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 10/10/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 10/14/55 NGVD 29
27017600 954.77 11/22/55 NGVD 29
27017600 955.35 5/1/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.3 5/4/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.43 5/5/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.43 5/8/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.49 5/12/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.45 5/15/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.43 5/19/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.41 5/22/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.41 5/26/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.41 5/31/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.39 6/2/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.37 6/5/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.37 6/9/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.38 6/12/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.45 6/16/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.55 6/19/56 NGVD 29
27017600 955.89 6/23/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 6/26/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 6/29/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.22 7/3/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 7/6/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 7/10/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 7/13/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.29 7/17/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 7/20/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.29 7/24/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 7/27/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.49 7/31/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.9 8/3/56 NGVD 29
27017600 957.09 8/7/56 NGVD 29
27017600 957.23 8/10/56 NGVD 29
27017600 957.17 8/14/56 NGVD 29
27017600 957.09 8/17/56 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 8/21/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.97 8/23/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.97 8/28/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 8/31/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.82 9/4/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.77 9/7/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.73 9/10/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.67 9/14/56 NGVD 29



27017600 956.63 9/17/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.59 9/21/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 9/25/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.47 9/28/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.39 10/2/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 10/5/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 10/8/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 10/12/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 10/16/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 10/19/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.21 10/23/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.19 10/26/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.21 10/28/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 11/2/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 11/5/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 11/9/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.23 11/13/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 11/16/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 11/20/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.23 11/23/56 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 4/2/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 4/6/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 4/9/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 4/13/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 4/16/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 4/20/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.64 4/23/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 4/27/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 4/29/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 4/30/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 5/4/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 5/7/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 5/11/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 5/14/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.5 5/17/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 5/21/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 5/25/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.64 5/28/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 5/31/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.58 6/4/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 6/7/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 6/11/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 6/14/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 6/18/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.86 6/19/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.7 6/21/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 6/22/57 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 6/25/57 NGVD 29
27017600 958.26 6/28/57 NGVD 29
27017600 958.3 7/2/57 NGVD 29
27017600 958.24 7/5/57 NGVD 29
27017600 958.16 7/9/57 NGVD 29



27017600 958.1 7/12/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.96 7/16/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.8 7/23/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.74 7/26/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.58 7/30/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 8/2/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 8/6/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.54 8/9/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.66 8/13/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 8/16/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 8/20/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.54 8/23/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.5 8/27/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 8/30/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 9/3/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 9/6/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.86 9/10/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.78 9/13/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 9/17/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 9/20/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.5 9/24/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.36 9/27/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.32 10/1/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.18 10/4/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.14 10/8/57 NGVD 29
27017600 957.04 10/11/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.98 10/15/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.94 10/18/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.92 10/22/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.88 10/25/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.84 10/29/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.81 11/1/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 11/5/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.68 11/8/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 11/12/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.64 11/15/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 11/19/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 11/22/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 11/26/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 11/29/57 NGVD 29
27017600 956.18 3/25/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 3/28/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.2 4/1/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 4/4/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 4/8/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.5 4/11/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.5 4/15/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 4/18/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 4/22/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.44 4/25/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 4/29/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.32 5/2/58 NGVD 29



27017600 956.3 5/6/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 5/9/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.22 5/13/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.24 5/16/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.2 5/20/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 5/23/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.12 5/27/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.08 5/30/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.14 6/3/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 6/6/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.18 6/10/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 6/13/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.1 6/17/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.08 6/20/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.04 6/24/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956.02 6/27/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 7/1/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.94 7/4/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 7/8/58 NGVD 29
27017600 956 7/11/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 7/15/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 7/18/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.86 7/22/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.84 7/25/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.82 7/29/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.8 8/1/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 8/5/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.9 8/8/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.9 8/12/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.88 8/15/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.81 8/19/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 8/22/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.72 8/26/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 8/29/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.74 9/2/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.72 9/5/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.72 9/9/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 9/12/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.66 9/16/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.6 9/19/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.55 9/22/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.5 9/26/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.46 9/29/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.42 10/3/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.4 10/7/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.38 10/10/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.36 10/14/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.32 10/17/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.3 10/21/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.26 10/24/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.26 10/28/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.24 10/31/58 NGVD 29



27017600 955.24 11/4/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.22 11/7/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.22 11/11/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.24 11/14/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.24 11/18/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.26 11/21/58 NGVD 29
27017600 955.18 4/21/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.09 5/4/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.34 5/8/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.32 5/12/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.3 5/15/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.32 5/19/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.34 5/22/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.38 5/26/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.44 5/29/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.45 6/2/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.47 6/5/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.42 6/8/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.37 6/12/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.33 6/16/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.27 6/19/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.25 6/23/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.41 6/26/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.33 6/30/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.25 7/3/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.27 7/7/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.63 7/10/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.58 7/14/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.56 7/17/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.56 7/21/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.54 7/24/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.48 7/28/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.36 7/31/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.34 8/4/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.32 8/7/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.3 8/11/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.26 8/14/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.3 8/18/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.23 8/20/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.28 8/21/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.46 8/25/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.44 8/28/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.44 9/1/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.42 9/4/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.38 9/8/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.34 9/11/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.3 9/15/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.26 9/18/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.24 9/22/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.24 9/25/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.28 10/13/59 NGVD 29
27017600 954.95 10/15/59 NGVD 29



27017600 955.26 10/16/59 NGVD 29
27017600 954.91 10/20/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.21 10/27/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.18 10/30/59 NGVD 29
27017600 955.32 3/29/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.36 4/1/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.61 4/5/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 4/8/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.82 4/12/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.02 4/15/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 4/19/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.04 4/22/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.08 4/26/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 4/29/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.2 5/3/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.24 5/6/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.2 5/10/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 5/13/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 5/17/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.5 5/20/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.68 5/24/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.82 5/27/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.86 5/31/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.84 6/3/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 6/7/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 6/10/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.64 6/13/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 6/14/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 6/17/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 6/21/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 6/24/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 6/28/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 7/1/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.42 7/5/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 7/8/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.32 7/12/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.3 7/15/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.24 7/19/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.2 7/20/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.22 7/22/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 7/26/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.12 7/29/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.02 8/2/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956 8/5/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 8/9/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 8/12/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.82 8/16/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.8 8/19/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.8 8/23/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.86 8/26/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.12 8/30/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.12 9/2/60 NGVD 29



27017600 956.08 9/6/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.06 9/9/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956 9/13/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.98 9/16/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 9/20/60 NGVD 29
27017600 955.98 9/23/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.04 9/27/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.04 9/30/60 NGVD 29
27017600 956.78 10/1/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 10/5/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.78 10/8/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 10/12/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.74 10/15/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 10/19/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 10/22/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 10/26/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 10/29/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.5 11/2/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.46 11/5/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.42 11/9/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 11/12/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.38 11/16/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 11/19/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 11/23/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 11/26/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 11/30/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 12/3/62 NGVD 29
27017600 956.46 3/25/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 3/29/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.64 4/1/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 4/5/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 4/8/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 4/12/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.7 4/15/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.7 4/19/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.7 4/22/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 4/26/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 4/29/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 5/3/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.82 5/6/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.94 5/10/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.2 5/13/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 5/17/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.32 5/20/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.26 5/24/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.24 5/27/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.26 5/31/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 6/3/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.42 6/6/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.36 6/7/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.54 6/10/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 6/14/63 NGVD 29



27017600 957.42 6/17/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.26 6/21/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.18 6/24/63 NGVD 29
27017600 957.06 6/28/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.96 7/1/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.84 7/5/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 7/8/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.64 7/12/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 7/15/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 7/19/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.46 7/22/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 7/26/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 7/29/63 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 10/27/65 NGVD 29
27017600 955.7 11/7/66 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 8/21/70 NGVD 29
27017600 957.5 5/27/71 NGVD 29
27017600 956.9 7/30/71 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 10/3/72 NGVD 29
27017600 955.9 7/20/73 NGVD 29
27017600 954.66 8/27/76 NGVD 29
27017600 954.5 5/23/77 NGVD 29
27017600 954.06 11/17/77 NGVD 29
27017600 956.05 12/2/80 NGVD 29
27017600 956.74 5/5/81 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 12/3/85 NGVD 29
27017600 955.49 5/23/89 NGVD 29
27017600 954.56 1/1/90 NGVD 29
27017600 957.52 5/1/91 NGVD 29
27017600 958.56 6/4/91 NGVD 29
27017600 958.15 7/9/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.78 7/14/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.58 7/20/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.42 7/28/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.47 8/4/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 8/10/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 8/11/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 8/15/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.28 8/25/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.08 9/1/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.18 9/8/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 9/14/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.8 9/22/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 9/30/91 NGVD 29
27017600 957.72 10/6/91 NGVD 29
27017600 958.14 4/14/92 NGVD 29
27017600 958.14 4/14/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 5/9/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.8 5/16/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.69 5/23/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 5/30/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 6/6/92 NGVD 29



27017600 957.35 6/13/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 6/20/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.15 6/27/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.18 7/4/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.22 7/11/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.19 7/18/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.12 7/25/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.11 8/1/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.07 8/8/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.01 8/15/92 NGVD 29
27017600 956.99 8/22/92 NGVD 29
27017600 956.92 8/29/92 NGVD 29
27017600 956.92 9/5/92 NGVD 29
27017600 956.9 9/12/92 NGVD 29
27017600 956.96 9/19/92 NGVD 29
27017600 957.12 9/26/92 NGVD 29
27017600 958.02 4/27/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.02 4/27/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 4/27/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 5/16/93 NGVD 29
27017600 957.74 6/6/93 NGVD 29
27017600 957.68 6/13/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.38 6/28/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.46 6/30/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.84 7/5/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.86 7/11/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958 8/22/93 NGVD 29
27017600 957.04 10/10/93 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 4/20/94 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 4/20/94 NGVD 29
27017600 958.08 4/24/94 NGVD 29
27017600 958.91 5/1/94 NGVD 29
27017600 958.16 5/29/94 NGVD 29
27017600 957.96 6/5/94 NGVD 29
27017600 957.54 7/9/94 NGVD 29
27017600 957.24 7/14/94 NGVD 29
27017600 957.16 7/31/94 NGVD 29
27017600 957.12 8/1/94 NGVD 29
27017600 956.94 9/14/94 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 10/9/94 NGVD 29
27017600 956.64 11/16/94 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 12/1/94 NGVD 29
27017600 956.69 12/20/94 NGVD 29
27017600 956.67 3/7/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.49 4/17/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.24 5/25/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.26 6/4/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 6/11/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.16 6/20/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.04 6/25/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.91 7/8/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.88 7/16/95 NGVD 29



27017600 956.76 7/24/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.61 8/1/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 8/6/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.09 8/13/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.16 8/19/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.94 9/10/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.81 9/17/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.68 9/26/95 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 10/1/95 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 5/1/96 NGVD 29
27017600 955.55 10/17/96 NGVD 29
27017600 957.53 4/14/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.53 4/14/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.11 8/6/97 NGVD 29
27017600 956.99 8/17/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.23 8/20/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.25 8/23/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.19 8/30/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.07 9/9/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.01 9/19/97 NGVD 29
27017600 956.89 9/27/97 NGVD 29
27017600 956.81 10/1/97 NGVD 29
27017600 956.79 10/6/97 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 10/14/97 NGVD 29
27017600 956.61 10/24/97 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 4/15/98 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 4/15/98 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 4/22/98 NGVD 29
27017600 957.16 4/30/98 NGVD 29
27017600 957.02 5/7/98 NGVD 29
27017600 957.02 5/7/98 NGVD 29
27017600 957.02 5/13/98 NGVD 29
27017600 957.02 5/19/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.91 5/26/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.88 5/27/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.69 6/9/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 6/15/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.59 6/25/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.84 6/27/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 7/8/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 7/13/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 7/21/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 7/24/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 7/30/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.39 8/4/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.32 8/14/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.27 8/19/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.42 8/23/98 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 8/28/98 NGVD 29
27017600 955.98 9/14/98 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 9/19/98 NGVD 29
27017600 955.8 10/4/98 NGVD 29



27017600 956.48 4/9/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 4/9/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.48 4/15/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 5/12/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.66 5/17/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.7 6/1/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.66 6/10/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 6/18/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 7/4/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.58 7/10/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 7/16/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 7/24/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.32 7/31/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.18 8/5/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.12 8/11/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.04 8/15/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.94 8/21/99 NGVD 29
27017600 957.04 8/27/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.86 9/12/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.68 9/24/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 10/3/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 10/13/99 NGVD 29
27017600 956.19 4/6/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.19 4/6/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.23 4/21/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.2 5/5/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.14 5/17/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 6/6/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 6/12/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.24 6/17/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.22 6/23/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.1 7/4/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 7/10/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 7/13/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 7/20/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.22 7/29/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.1 8/10/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.1 8/17/00 NGVD 29
27017600 956.02 8/26/00 NGVD 29
27017600 955.92 9/3/00 NGVD 29
27017600 955.8 9/16/00 NGVD 29
27017600 955.68 9/23/00 NGVD 29
27017600 958.81 5/7/01 NGVD 29
27017600 958.81 5/7/01 NGVD 29
27017600 958.19 5/25/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.89 6/8/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.89 6/14/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.87 6/24/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.55 7/2/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.59 7/7/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.37 7/17/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.25 7/27/01 NGVD 29



27017600 957.15 8/4/01 NGVD 29
27017600 956.97 8/11/01 NGVD 29
27017600 956.91 8/18/01 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 8/27/01 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 8/31/01 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 9/16/01 NGVD 29
27017600 957.55 4/22/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.26 5/15/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 5/31/02 NGVD 29
27017600 957.98 6/8/02 NGVD 29
27017600 957.96 6/12/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.34 6/23/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.96 6/28/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.92 7/2/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.78 7/8/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.96 7/12/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.98 7/14/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.6 7/25/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.54 7/29/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.4 8/3/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.34 8/9/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.28 8/19/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.7 8/25/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.64 8/31/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.88 9/7/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.8 9/15/02 NGVD 29
27017600 958.34 10/1/02 NGVD 29
27017600 957.68 4/8/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 4/10/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.62 4/14/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 4/21/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.12 4/26/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.02 5/6/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.38 5/17/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.58 5/20/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.48 5/28/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.26 6/10/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 6/14/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.92 6/22/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.74 6/27/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.88 6/28/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.92 7/1/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.76 7/11/03 NGVD 29
27017600 958.08 8/1/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 8/8/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.66 8/15/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.36 8/29/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.24 9/4/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957.26 9/13/03 NGVD 29
27017600 956.84 10/17/03 NGVD 29
27017600 957 4/8/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.04 4/11/04 NGVD 29



27017600 957.1 4/19/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.1 5/12/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.16 5/17/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.84 5/31/04 NGVD 29
27017600 958.28 6/2/04 NGVD 29
27017600 958.44 6/8/04 NGVD 29
27017600 958.66 6/10/04 NGVD 29
27017600 958.82 6/15/04 NGVD 29
27017600 958.74 6/18/04 NGVD 29
27017600 958.14 7/11/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.98 7/19/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.72 7/24/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 8/4/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 8/8/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957 8/27/04 NGVD 29
27017600 956.96 9/11/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957 9/18/04 NGVD 29
27017600 957.16 4/13/05 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 6/6/05 NGVD 29
27017600 957.5 6/13/05 NGVD 29
27017600 957.5 6/19/05 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 7/29/05 NGVD 29
27017600 957.08 8/6/05 NGVD 29
27017600 957 8/21/05 NGVD 29
27017600 956.9 9/16/05 NGVD 29
27017600 956.88 10/4/05 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 4/26/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.62 4/26/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.86 4/30/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.96 5/1/06 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 5/2/06 NGVD 29
27017600 958.11 5/3/06 NGVD 29
27017600 958.11 5/7/06 NGVD 29
27017600 958.11 5/8/06 NGVD 29
27017600 958.11 5/15/06 NGVD 29
27017600 958.01 5/22/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.91 5/29/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.81 6/7/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.71 6/12/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 6/19/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.54 6/28/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.41 7/4/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.11 7/11/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.06 7/18/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.91 7/25/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 8/1/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 8/2/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 8/2/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 8/9/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.63 8/15/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.51 8/28/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 9/4/06 NGVD 29



27017600 956.51 9/12/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.41 9/19/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.47 9/23/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 10/17/06 NGVD 29
27017600 956.21 10/31/06 NGVD 29
27017600 957.62 4/13/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.62 4/14/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.52 4/21/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.42 4/28/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.39 5/1/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.32 5/8/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.22 5/16/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.12 5/21/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 5/30/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.99 6/5/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.8 6/13/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.69 6/21/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.54 6/26/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.42 7/3/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.34 7/10/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.22 7/17/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.14 7/23/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.07 7/31/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.02 8/1/07 NGVD 29
27017600 955.97 8/8/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.12 8/14/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.14 8/21/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.22 8/28/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.12 9/4/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.02 9/11/07 NGVD 29
27017600 956.07 9/18/07 NGVD 29
27017600 958.32 10/6/07 NGVD 29
27017600 957.69 4/30/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.69 5/1/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.79 5/5/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.84 5/9/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.89 5/11/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.74 5/21/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.59 5/27/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.49 6/3/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 6/10/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.69 6/16/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 6/23/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.53 6/26/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.29 7/9/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.39 7/11/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.29 7/14/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.25 7/18/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.29 7/21/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.09 7/28/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.87 8/6/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.74 8/12/08 NGVD 29



27017600 956.65 8/19/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.49 8/27/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.69 8/28/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.59 9/5/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.59 9/22/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.59 9/29/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.39 10/3/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 10/6/08 NGVD 29
27017600 956.34 10/15/08 NGVD 29
27017600 957.04 5/7/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.88 5/12/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.86 5/19/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.76 5/26/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.72 6/1/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.71 6/8/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 6/16/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.66 6/17/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.62 6/24/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.56 7/1/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.46 7/8/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 7/15/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 7/22/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 7/29/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 8/1/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.14 8/5/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 8/10/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 8/19/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.18 8/21/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 8/26/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.14 9/9/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 9/16/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.06 9/22/09 NGVD 29
27017600 955.96 9/30/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.14 10/9/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.16 10/16/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 10/21/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 11/4/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.24 11/11/09 NGVD 29
27017600 956.21 11/19/09 NGVD 29
27017600 957.33 4/28/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.33 4/28/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.35 5/2/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.37 5/9/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 5/16/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.49 5/23/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 5/25/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 6/2/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.31 6/7/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.39 6/13/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.37 6/20/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.41 6/26/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.55 6/27/10 NGVD 29



27017600 957.58 7/5/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.39 7/12/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.37 7/18/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.35 7/29/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.21 8/9/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.43 8/11/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 8/13/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.59 8/22/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.55 8/25/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 8/31/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.49 9/3/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.43 9/8/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.37 9/14/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.57 9/17/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.79 9/24/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.79 10/7/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.75 10/10/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 10/28/10 NGVD 29
27017600 957.59 11/9/10 NGVD 29
27017600 958.87 4/13/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.87 4/13/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.91 4/13/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.75 4/17/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.7 4/19/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.7 4/24/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.75 4/26/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.65 5/2/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.75 5/9/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.75 5/18/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.75 5/21/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.85 5/23/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.95 5/24/11 NGVD 29
27017600 959 5/26/11 NGVD 29
27017600 959.05 5/30/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.93 6/4/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.91 6/5/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.81 6/8/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.71 6/10/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.63 6/13/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.65 6/23/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.45 6/28/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.25 7/5/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.1 7/12/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.25 7/19/11 NGVD 29
27017600 958.09 8/4/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.75 8/9/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.9 8/17/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.65 8/29/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.55 9/5/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 9/12/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.25 9/19/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.15 9/26/11 NGVD 29



27017600 957.13 10/6/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 10/17/11 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 10/29/11 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 11/8/11 NGVD 29
27017600 956.7 11/18/11 NGVD 29
27017600 956.7 11/30/11 NGVD 29
27017600 957.02 4/20/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 4/23/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.17 5/2/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 5/5/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 5/6/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.55 5/8/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.57 5/10/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 5/20/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.9 5/24/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.8 5/27/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.83 5/28/12 NGVD 29
27017600 958.6 5/30/12 NGVD 29
27017600 958.5 6/12/12 NGVD 29
27017600 958.46 6/18/12 NGVD 29
27017600 958.65 6/19/12 NGVD 29
27017600 958.48 6/26/12 NGVD 29
27017600 958 7/12/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 7/17/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.8 7/23/12 NGVD 29
27017600 958.05 7/24/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.7 8/7/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.55 8/17/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 8/25/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 8/28/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.06 9/12/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957 9/16/12 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 9/26/12 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 10/11/12 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 10/30/12 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 11/9/12 NGVD 29
27017600 956.5 12/6/12 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 5/9/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 5/9/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 5/18/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.09 5/20/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.1 5/21/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.14 5/27/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.19 5/31/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.14 6/8/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.34 6/14/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.38 6/21/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.74 6/22/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.94 6/24/13 NGVD 29
27017600 959.04 6/26/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.96 7/2/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 8/3/13 NGVD 29



27017600 958.14 8/5/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 8/10/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 8/14/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.84 8/19/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.79 8/21/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.74 8/23/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 8/27/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.54 8/30/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.49 9/5/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 9/10/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.36 9/14/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 9/15/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.39 9/20/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.24 10/2/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.32 10/4/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 10/7/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.3 10/13/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 10/16/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.42 10/18/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 10/20/13 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 11/19/13 NGVD 29
27017600 958.31 4/30/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.31 4/30/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.47 5/3/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.53 5/5/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.47 5/8/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.49 5/10/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.37 5/14/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.4 5/19/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.42 5/22/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.32 5/26/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.33 5/28/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.22 5/30/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.57 6/1/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.62 6/2/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.67 6/3/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.72 6/7/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.67 6/10/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.57 6/14/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.57 6/16/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.77 6/21/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.67 6/27/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.47 6/29/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.47 7/2/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.27 7/6/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.17 7/7/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.15 7/12/14 NGVD 29
27017600 958.07 7/15/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.97 7/17/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.87 7/20/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.78 7/22/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.72 7/25/14 NGVD 29



27017600 957.55 7/31/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.47 8/2/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 8/3/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.37 8/11/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.31 8/12/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.21 8/15/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.17 8/20/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.07 8/26/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.12 9/2/14 NGVD 29
27017600 957.07 9/6/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.99 9/9/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.97 9/14/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.93 9/18/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.87 9/24/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.77 9/28/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 10/2/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.67 10/8/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.57 10/12/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.47 10/18/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.42 10/27/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.37 11/3/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.35 11/10/14 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 4/4/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 4/7/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 4/18/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 4/29/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 4/29/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.26 4/29/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.43 5/3/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.36 5/8/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 5/12/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.43 5/15/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.47 5/20/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 5/23/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 5/26/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.63 5/27/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.65 5/28/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 6/3/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.79 6/4/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.83 6/9/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 6/11/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.83 6/18/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 6/25/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 6/29/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 7/1/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 7/6/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 7/6/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.9 7/8/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 7/12/15 NGVD 29
27017600 957 7/13/15 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 7/18/15 NGVD 29
27017600 957.05 7/20/15 NGVD 29



27017600 957 7/23/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.95 7/29/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.9 8/2/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.85 8/4/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.8 8/8/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.82 8/11/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.78 8/15/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.75 8/16/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.73 8/17/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.8 8/19/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.65 8/26/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.61 8/29/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.6 9/1/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.63 9/2/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.65 9/8/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.55 9/14/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.53 9/18/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.49 9/22/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.52 9/26/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.47 9/28/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.4 10/2/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.35 10/4/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.33 10/9/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.31 10/14/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 10/25/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.45 10/31/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.25 11/11/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.8 11/24/15 NGVD 29
27017600 957 12/7/15 NGVD 29
27017600 957 12/11/15 NGVD 29
27017600 957.03 12/16/15 NGVD 29
27017600 956.98 4/4/16 NGVD 29
27017600 956.98 4/5/16 NGVD 29
27017600 956.98 4/11/16 NGVD 29
27017600 956.91 4/18/16 NGVD 29
27017600 956.98 4/19/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957 4/20/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.18 4/25/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.2 4/26/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.23 4/27/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 4/29/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 5/2/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.42 5/3/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.47 5/11/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 5/16/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 5/21/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 5/22/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.47 5/24/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 5/25/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 5/27/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 6/3/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.47 6/4/16 NGVD 29



27017600 957.43 6/7/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.4 6/8/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.43 6/10/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.42 6/11/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 6/14/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.5 6/15/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 6/17/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 6/23/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 6/25/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 6/26/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.32 6/28/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.28 6/30/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.24 7/3/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 7/6/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 7/12/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.33 7/15/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.28 7/18/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.22 7/22/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 7/23/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.36 7/25/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.34 7/27/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 7/28/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.36 7/29/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.28 8/3/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.38 8/4/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.33 8/7/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.28 8/8/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 8/10/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 8/11/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.68 8/12/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.75 8/14/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.78 8/15/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 8/18/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.98 8/19/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.13 8/20/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 8/21/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.58 8/24/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.26 8/29/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.78 8/30/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.98 9/5/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.24 9/6/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.22 9/7/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.2 9/9/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.08 9/12/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.03 9/14/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.98 9/16/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.95 9/18/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 9/19/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.45 9/21/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.42 9/23/16 NGVD 29
27017600 958.42 9/25/16 NGVD 29
27017600 957.7 4/4/17 NGVD 29



27017600 957.64 4/8/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.64 4/8/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.72 4/15/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 4/18/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.85 4/21/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.9 5/1/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.05 5/2/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 5/4/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 5/11/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 5/15/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.9 5/16/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.96 5/17/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 5/18/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.3 5/22/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.36 5/24/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.4 5/27/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.3 5/31/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.28 6/2/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.22 6/4/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 6/5/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.15 6/7/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.12 6/9/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 6/14/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.02 6/16/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 6/20/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.9 6/24/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.72 6/27/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 6/28/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 7/1/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.72 7/3/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.68 7/3/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.62 7/6/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.6 7/7/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 7/10/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.5 7/11/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.48 7/14/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 7/15/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.45 7/15/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 7/19/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.44 7/19/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 7/22/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.99 7/24/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 7/28/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.83 8/1/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.77 8/5/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.73 8/6/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.83 8/9/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 8/11/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.89 8/14/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.03 8/17/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.03 8/23/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.23 8/26/17 NGVD 29



27017600 958.28 8/29/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.13 9/7/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 9/11/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.03 9/14/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.99 9/20/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 9/23/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.03 9/27/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 9/29/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.09 10/3/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.11 10/5/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.13 10/10/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.13 11/3/17 NGVD 29
27017600 958.03 11/17/17 NGVD 29
27017600 957.75 5/9/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 5/11/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 5/15/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 5/16/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 5/19/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.41 5/22/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 5/25/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.41 5/28/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.56 5/30/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 6/4/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 6/7/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 6/9/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.41 6/15/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 6/17/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.65 6/18/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.71 6/19/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.71 6/26/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 7/1/18 NGVD 29
27017600 958.01 7/5/18 NGVD 29
27017600 958.01 7/9/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.97 7/12/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.91 7/19/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.83 7/22/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.81 7/25/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.79 7/27/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.76 7/28/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.71 7/30/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.69 7/31/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.62 8/4/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.63 8/6/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.53 8/12/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.49 8/14/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.46 8/16/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.37 8/20/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.31 8/22/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.33 8/27/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.35 8/29/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.31 9/5/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.29 9/6/18 NGVD 29



27017600 957.21 9/11/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.14 9/14/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.11 9/15/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 9/20/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.51 9/29/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.57 10/2/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.59 10/4/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 10/6/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.63 10/9/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.73 10/13/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.66 10/21/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.66 10/27/18 NGVD 29
27017600 957.61 11/1/18 NGVD 29
27017600 958.3 4/24/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.3 4/25/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.1 5/4/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958 5/7/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.05 5/9/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958 5/15/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 5/18/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.14 5/20/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.25 5/23/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.3 5/24/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.34 5/26/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.5 5/27/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.54 5/28/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.56 5/29/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.52 6/4/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.5 6/7/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.4 6/10/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.36 6/12/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.32 6/14/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.3 6/15/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.28 6/16/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.26 6/18/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.22 6/19/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 6/20/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.2 6/21/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 6/22/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.23 6/24/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.2 6/25/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 6/26/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.18 6/27/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.16 6/28/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.12 6/29/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.1 6/30/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.2 7/1/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.26 7/2/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.22 7/4/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.22 7/7/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 7/9/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 7/11/19 NGVD 29



27017600 958 7/12/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.98 7/13/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 7/14/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.1 7/15/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.1 7/16/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.08 7/18/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.12 7/19/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.12 7/20/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.12 7/22/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.12 7/23/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.1 7/26/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.08 7/27/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.08 7/30/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.06 7/31/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.04 8/1/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958.02 8/2/19 NGVD 29
27017600 958 8/3/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.98 8/4/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.96 8/5/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.9 8/9/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 8/9/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.88 8/10/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.94 8/11/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 8/12/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.91 8/13/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.93 8/14/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.91 8/14/19 NGVD 29
27017600 957.9 8/16/19 NGVD 29



Lake
Independence

Lake Independence
Water Level Comparison

Shoreline Area Between
Elevation 956.8 OHWL and 958.2
Independence Boundary

Note: Contour Data is approximate and was obtained from LiDAR



Mark Kaltsas, City Administrator 
City of Independence 
1920 County Rd. 90 
Independence, MN 55359 
 
February 12, 2020 
 
Dear Mark, 
 
The purpose of this letter is to request a change in the “slow no-wake” ordinance water level on Lake 
Independence. The current high-water trigger level is set at 957.8 feet above sea level. The requested 
change is to raise the trigger to 958.2 feet above sea level. 
 
This request is championed by Lake Independence Citizen’s Association (LICA). LICA is a group of 
volunteers representing Lake Independence lakeshore owners and other interested parties. The LICA 
board of directors has engaged in numerous discussions with key stakeholders including personnel from 
Three Rivers Park District and MNDNR, officials from the cities of Medina and Independence as well as 
survey results from LICA members. Through these discussions, it has been determined that the new 
level of 958.2 offers an appropriate balance between water quality and responsible recreational use on 
Lake Independence. 
 
Note that a similar letter has been sent to the City of Medina. It is understood that both cities need to 
agree to this ordinance amendment. 
 
Reference: Section 915 – Regulation of Lake Sarah and Lake Independence Surface Use 

• 915.19 Slow no-wake zone on Lake Independence 
 
 
On behalf of LICA and Respectfully Submitted, 
 
Tom Blanck 
LICA President 



Ordinance No. ___ 

April 7, 2020 

CITY OF MEDINA 

 

ORDINANCE NO.  

 

An Ordinance Amending Section 512 of the Code of Ordinances 

Regarding Surface Use of Lake Independence 

 

 The city council of the city of Medina ordains as follows: 

 

SECTION I:  Section 512 of the code of ordinances is amended by adding the underlined 

material and deleting the stricken material as follows: 

 

Section 512.01.  Authority to regulate water surface use.  Pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, 

sections 459.20, 471.59 and 86B.205, Medina has entered into a joint powers agreement with the 

city of Independence for the purpose of regulating the surface use of the body of water known as 

Lake Independence.  This ordinance shall be effective after adoption and publication of this 

ordinance and after adoption of a similar ordinance by Independence.  This ordinance shall 

remain in effect until repealed or until the joint powers agreement is terminated. 

 

Section 512.03.  Definitions. 

Subd. 1.  The terms used in this ordinance related to boating, including “slow no-wake,” shall 

have the meanings given to them in Minnesota Statutes, section 86B.005. 

 

Subd. 2.  “Lake Independence” means that body of water located in section 24, township 118, 

range 24, Hennepin County, Minnesota and designated by the Minnesota department of natural 

resources as lake #27-176. 

 

Section 512.05.  Slow no-wake zone on Lake Independence.   

Subd. 1.  Slow no-wake at high water level.  Whenever the waters of Lake Independence reach 

or exceed 958.2  feet above sea level for a period of three consecutive days, as measured by the 

water level gauge set by the Minnesota department of natural resources on Lake Independence, 

the city administrator or designee, upon notifying the Hennepin county sheriff, shall establish a 

slow no-wake zone on those portions of the lake within Medina.  No person shall operate a water 

craft, including aircraft except during landings and take-offs, in excess of slow no-wake speed on 

the entire lake when the high water slow no-wake restrictions are in effect.  Both the 

implementation and removal of these restrictions must be done in coordination with action by the 

city of Independence. 

 

Subd. 2.  Effective date of no-wake regulation. A slow no-wake restriction shall become 

effective upon the date specified by the city administrator and shall remain in effect until the 

water level for the lake has receded below 958.2 feet above sea level for at least three 

consecutive days. 

 

Section 512.07.  Notification.  The city administrator shall notify the public of both the 

implementation and removal of the no-wake restriction by publishing a notice in the city’s 

official newspaper, posting the restriction at all public lake access points within the city prior to 

Agenda Item # 9A 

Formatted: Font color: Red

Formatted: Font color: Red



Ordinance No. ___ 

April 7, 2020 
2 

and during the time the restriction is in place, posting the restriction at city hall, and by such 

other means as the city administrator determines to be reasonable. 

 

Section 512.09.  Exemption.  Enforcement, resource management and emergency personnel, 

while in the performance of their official duties, are exempt from the provisions of this 

ordinance. 

 

Section 512.11.  Penalties.  Any person convicted of violating this ordinance shall be guilty of a 

misdemeanor and shall be subject to a maximum fine or a maximum period of imprisonment, or 

both, as specified by Minnesota Statutes, section 609.03.  

 

Section 512.13.  Enforcement.  The Hennepin county sheriff’s department and special deputies 

appointed and sworn by the sheriff have primary responsibility for enforcing the provisions of 

this ordinance, but nothing herein shall preclude other licensed peace officers from enforcing this 

ordinance. 

 

 

SECTION II.  This ordinance shall become effective upon its adoption and publication. 

 

Adopted by the city council of the city of Medina this ____ day of _____, 2020. 

 

 

       ____________________________ 

       Kathy Martin, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Jodi M. Gallup, City Clerk 

 

 

Published in the South Crow River News this ___ day of ______, 2020. 

 

 

 

 



FROM MN DNR 
https://www.dnr.state.mn.us/lakefind/lake.html?id=27017600

• 100 Year Flood Elevation 
959.5’ (FEMA)

• Highest ever recorded 
959.05’ 
5-3-2011

• Proposed Level of 958.5’

• LICA Proposed Level of 
958.2’

• Current Trigger Level 
957.8’ (Full lake)

• Ordinary High water
mark 956.8’ (DNR)

https://www.dnr.state.mn.us/lakefind/lake.html%3Fid=27017600


• 100 Year Flood Elevation 
959.5’ (FEMA)

• Highest ever recorded 
959.05’ 
5-3-2011

• Proposed Level of 958.5’

• LICA Proposed Level of 
958.2’

• Current Trigger Level 
957.8’ (Full lake)

• Ordinary High water 
mark 956.8’ (DNR)



Key Facts and Topics of Discussion

• Amendment Document for Lake Independence was changed in July of 2014.  The original ordinance was a 250’ 
setback and the new amendment changed to full lake without adjusting trigger level

• LICA conducted a survey with only members addressing the lake level in 2019 and the results were very divided in 
regards to the amended ordinance.  What are the demographics of the survey, and does this represent the entire 
community who has been enjoying Lake Independence for the past 40+ years

• Why is the suggested level nearly 2’ from the 100 year high water mark and all other surrounding lakes are within a 
few inches

• Where is the erosion currently happening on the lake in the past several years and why isn’t that a focus rather than 
shutting down recreation?

• We would like to propose the new trigger level for full lake no wake to be set at 958.5’ which is one foot below the 
100 year high water mark and at a level which Lake Independence can support.




